

agency promulgating the rule must submit a rule report, which includes a copy of the rule, to each House of the Congress and to the Comptroller General of the United States. We will submit a report containing this rule and other required information to the U.S. Senate, the U.S. House of Representatives, and the Comptroller General of the United States. A major rule cannot take effect until 60 days after it is published in the **Federal Register**. This rule is not a “major rule” as defined by 5 U.S.C. 804(2).

Executive Order 12898, “Federal Actions To Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations”

Executive Order 12898 requires that, to the greatest extent practicable and permitted by law, each Federal agency must make achieving environmental justice part of its mission. Executive Order 12898 provides that each Federal agency conduct its programs, policies, and activities that substantially affect human health or the environment in a manner that ensures that such programs, policies, and activities do not have the effect of excluding persons (including populations) from participation in, denying persons (including populations) the benefits of, or subjecting persons (including populations) to discrimination under

such programs, policies, and activities because of their race, color, or national origin. This rule merely adjusts civil penalties to account for inflation, and therefore, is not expected to negatively impact any community, and therefore is not expected to cause any disproportionately high and adverse impacts to minority or low-income communities.

Executive Order 13211, “Actions Concerning Regulations That Significantly Affect Energy Supply, Distribution, or Use”

This rule is not a “significant energy action” as defined in Executive Order 13211 because it is not likely to have a significant adverse effect on the supply, distribution, or use of energy.

List of Subjects in 33 CFR Part 326

Administrative practice and procedure, Intergovernmental relations, Investigations, Law enforcement, Navigation (Water), Water pollution control, Waterways.

Dated: April 24, 2019.

Approved by:

Scott A. Spellmon,

Major General, U.S. Army, Deputy Commanding General for Civil and Emergency Operations.

For the reasons set forth in the preamble, the Corps amends 33 CFR part 326 as follows:

TABLE 1 TO PARAGRAPH (a)(1)

Environmental statute and U.S. code citation	Statutory civil monetary penalty amount for violations that occurred after November 2, 2015, and are assessed on or after May 3, 2019
Clean Water Act (CWA), Section 309(g)(2)(A), 33 U.S.C. 1319(g)(2)(A)	\$21,934 per violation, with a maximum of \$54,833.
CWA, Section 404(s)(4), 33 U.S.C. 1344(s)(4)	Maximum of \$54,833 per day for each violation.
National Fishing Enhancement Act, Section 205(e), 33 U.S.C. 2104(e)	Maximum of \$24,017 per violation.

* * * *

[FR Doc. 2019-09120 Filed 5-2-19; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 3720-58-P

POSTAL REGULATORY COMMISSION

39 CFR Part 3020

[Docket Nos. MC2010-21 and CP2010-36]

Update to Product List

AGENCY: Postal Regulatory Commission.
ACTION: Final rule.

SUMMARY: The Commission is updating the competitive product list. This action reflects a publication policy adopted by Commission order. The referenced policy assumes periodic updates. The updates are identified in the body of this document. The competitive product

list, which is re-published in its entirety, includes these updates.

DATES: *Effective date:* May 3, 2019. For applicability dates, see **SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION**.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:

David A. Trissell, General Counsel, at 202-789-6800.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Applicability Dates: January 2, 2019, Priority Mail Contract 501 (MC2019-60 and CP2019-65); January 2, 2019, Priority Mail Express Contract 69 (MC2019-61 and CP2019-66); January 3, 2019, Parcel Return Service Contract 11 (MC2019-62 and CP2019-67); January 3, 2019, Parcel Return Service Contract 12 (MC2019-63 and CP2019-68); January 8, 2019, Priority Mail Contract 502 (MC2019-66 and CP2019-71); January 8, 2019, Priority Mail

PART 326—ENFORCEMENT

■ 1. The authority citation for part 326 continues to read as follows:

Authority: 33 U.S.C. 401 *et seq.*; 33 U.S.C. 1344; 33 U.S.C. 1413; 33 U.S.C. 2104; 33 U.S.C. 1319; 28 U.S.C. 2461 note.

■ 2. Amend § 326.6 by revising paragraph (a)(1) to read as follows:

§ 326.6 Class I administrative penalties.

(a) * * *

(1) This section sets forth procedures for initiation and administration of Class I administrative penalty orders under Section 309(g) of the Clean Water Act, judicially-imposed civil penalties under Section 404(s) of the Clean Water Act, and Section 205 of the National Fishing Enhancement Act. Under Section 309(g)(2)(A) of the Clean Water Act, Class I civil penalties may not exceed \$21,934 per violation, except that the maximum amount of any Class I civil penalty shall not exceed \$54,833. Under Section 404(s)(4) of the Clean Water Act, judicially-imposed civil penalties may not exceed \$54,833 per day for each violation. Under Section 205(e) of the National Fishing Enhancement Act, penalties for violations of permits issued in accordance with that Act shall not exceed \$24,017 for each violation.

Express & Priority Mail Contract 81 (MC2019-68 and CP2019-73); January 8, 2019, Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 82 (MC2019-69 and CP2019-74); January 8, 2019, Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 83 (MC2019-70 and CP2019-75); January 8, 2019, Parcel Select & Parcel Return Service Contract 7 (MC2019-64 and CP2019-69); January 8, 2019, Global Plus 6 Contracts (MC2019-65 and CP2019-70); January 9, 2019, Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 48 (MC2019-71 and CP2019-76); January 9, 2019, Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 49 (MC2019-72 and CP2019-77); January 9, 2019, Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 50 (MC2019-73 and CP2019-78); January 10, 2019, Priority Mail

Express & Priority Mail Contract 84 (MC2019–74 and CP2019–79); January 10, 2019, Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 85 (MC2019–75 and CP2019–80); January 11, 2019, Priority Mail Contract 503 (MC2019–67 and CP2019–72); January 31, 2019, Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 78 (MC2019–48 and CP2019–52); February 13, 2019, Priority Mail Contract 504 (MC2019–76 and CP2019–81); February 13, 2019, Priority Mail Contract 505 (MC2019–77 and CP2019–82); March 19, 2019, Priority Mail Contract 506 (MC2019–80 and CP2019–86); March 19, 2019, Priority Mail Contract 508 (MC2019–82 and CP2019–88); March 19, 2019, Priority Mail Contract 507 (MC2019–81 and CP2019–87); March 20, 2019, Priority Mail Contract 509 (MC2019–83 and CP2019–89); March 20, 2019, Priority Mail Contract 510 (MC2019–84 and CP2019–90); March 20, 2019, Priority Mail Contract 512 (MC2019–86 and CP2019–92); March 20, 2019, Priority Mail Contract 513 (MC2019–87 and CP2019–93); March 20, 2019, Priority Mail Express Contract 70 (MC2019–78 and CP2019–84); March 20, 2019, Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 86 (MC2019–79 and CP2019–85); March 21, 2019, Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 51 (MC2019–88 and CP2019–94); March 21, 2019, Priority Mail Express Contract 71 (MC2019–89 and CP2019–95); March 21, 2019, Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 87 (MC2019–90 and CP2019–96); March 21, 2019, Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 94 (MC2019–91 and CP2019–97); March 21, 2019, First-Class Package Service Contract 98 (MC2019–92 and CP2019–98); March 22, 2019, Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 52 (MC2019–93 and CP2019–99); March 25, 2019, Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 88 (MC2019–94 and CP2019–100); March 26, 2019, Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 95 (MC2019–97 and CP2019–105); March 27, 2019, Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 96 (MC2019–101 and CP2019–109); March 28, 2019, Parcel Select & Parcel Return Service Contract 8 (MC2019–98 and CP2019–106).

This document identifies updates to the competitive product list, which appears as 39 CFR Appendix B to Subpart A of Part 3020—Competitive Product List. Publication of the updated product list in the **Federal Register** is addressed in the Postal Accountability and Enhancement Act (PAEA) of 2006.

Authorization. The Commission process for periodic publication of

updates was established in Docket Nos. MC2010–21 and CP2010–36, Order No. 445, April 22, 2010, at 8.

Changes. The competitive product list is being updated by publishing a replacement in its entirety of 39 CFR Appendix B to Subpart A of Part 3020—Competitive Product List. The following products are being added, removed, or moved within the competitive product list:

Competitive Product List

1. Priority Mail Contract 501 (MC2019–60 and CP2019–65) (Order No. 4961), added January 2, 2019.
2. Priority Mail Express Contract 69 (MC2019–61 and CP2019–66) (Order No. 4962), added January 2, 2019.
3. Parcel Return Service Contract 11 (MC2019–62 and CP2019–67) (Order No. 4964), added January 3, 2019.
4. Parcel Return Service Contract 12 (MC2019–63 and CP2019–68) (Order No. 4965), added January 3, 2019.
5. Priority Mail Contract 502 (MC2019–66 and CP2019–71) (Order No. 4968), added January 8, 2019.
6. Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 81 (MC2019–68 and CP2019–73) (Order No. 4969), added January 8, 2019.
7. Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 82 (MC2019–69 and CP2019–74) (Order No. 4970), added January 8, 2019.
8. Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 83 (MC2019–70 and CP2019–75) (Order No. 4971), added January 8, 2019.
9. Parcel Select & Parcel Return Service Contract 7 (MC2019–64 and CP2019–69) (Order No. 4974), added January 8, 2019.
10. Global Plus 6 Contracts (MC2019–65 and CP2019–70) (Order No. 4975), added January 8, 2019.
11. Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 48 (MC2019–71 and CP2019–76) (Order No. 4977), added January 9, 2019.
12. Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 49 (MC2019–72 and CP2019–77) (Order No. 4978), added January 9, 2019.
13. Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 50 (MC2019–73 and CP2019–78) (Order No. 4979), added January 9, 2019.
14. Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 84 (MC2019–74 and CP2019–79) (Order No. 4981), added January 10, 2019.
15. Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 85 (MC2019–75 and CP2019–80) (Order No. 4982), added January 10, 2019.
16. Priority Mail Contract 503 (MC2019–67 and CP2019–72) (Order No. 4985), added January 11, 2019.
17. Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 78 (MC2019–48 and CP2019–52) (Order No. 4995), added January 31, 2019.
18. Priority Mail Contract 504 (MC2019–76 and CP2019–81) (Order No. 4999), added February 13, 2019.
19. Priority Mail Contract 505 (MC2019–77 and CP2019–82) (Order No. 5000), added February 13, 2019.
20. Priority Mail Contract 506 (MC2019–80 and CP2019–86) (Order No. 5007), added March 19, 2019.
21. Priority Mail Contract 508 (MC2019–82 and CP2019–88) (Order No. 5008), added March 19, 2019.
22. Priority Mail Contract 507 (MC2019–81 and CP2019–87) (Order No. 5009), added March 19, 2019.
23. Priority Mail Contract 509 (MC2019–83 and CP2019–89) (Order No. 5010), added March 20, 2019.
24. Priority Mail Contract 510 (MC2019–84 and CP2019–90) (Order No. 5011), added March 20, 2019.
25. Priority Mail Contract 512 (MC2019–86 and CP2019–92) (Order No. 5012), added March 20, 2019.
26. Priority Mail Contract 513 (MC2019–87 and CP2019–93) (Order No. 5013), added March 20, 2019.
27. Priority Mail Express Contract 70 (MC2019–78 and CP2019–84) (Order No. 5014), added March 20, 2019.
28. Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 86 (MC2019–79 and CP2019–85) (Order No. 5015), added March 20, 2019.
29. Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 51 (MC2019–88 and CP2019–94) (Order No. 5016), added March 21, 2019.
30. Priority Mail Express Contract 71 (MC2019–89 and CP2019–95) (Order No. 5017), added March 21, 2019.
31. Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 87 (MC2019–90 and CP2019–96) (Order No. 5018), added March 21, 2019.
32. Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 94 (MC2019–91 and CP2019–97) (Order No. 5019), added March 21, 2019.
33. First-Class Package Service Contract 98 (MC2019–92 and CP2019–98) (Order No. 5020), added March 21, 2019.
34. Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 52 (MC2019–93 and CP2019–99) (Order No. 5021), added March 22, 2019.
35. Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 88 (MC2019–94 and CP2019–100) (Order No. 5027), added March 25, 2019.

36. Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 95 (MC2019–97 and CP2019–105) (Order No. 5028), added March 26, 2019.

37. Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 96 (MC2019–101 and CP2019–109) (Order No. 5029), added March 27, 2019.

38. Parcel Select & Parcel Return Service Contract 8 (MC2019–98 and CP2019–106) (Order No. 5031), added March 28, 2019.

The following negotiated service agreements have expired, or have been terminated early, and are being deleted from the Competitive Product List:

1. Parcel Return Service Contract 9 (MC2015–58 and CP2015–88) (Order No. 2569).

2. Parcel Return Service Contract 10 (MC2015–59 and CP2015–89) (Order No. 2572).

3. Priority Mail Contract 132 (MC2015–66 and CP2015–97) (Order No. 2598).

4. Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 19 (MC2015–69 and CP2015–107) (Order No. 2638).

5. Parcel Select Contract 10 (MC2015–85 and CP2015–141) (Order No. 2735).

6. Priority Mail Contract 146 (MC2016–3 and CP2016–3) (Order No. 2763).

7. Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 6 (MC2016–21 and CP2016–27) (Order No. 2848).

8. Priority Mail Contract 157 (MC2016–23 and CP2016–29) (Order No. 2878).

9. Parcel Select Contract 12 (MC2016–37 and CP2016–46) (Order No. 2927).

10. Priority Mail Contract 171 (MC2016–48 and CP2016–63) (Order No. 2977).

11. Priority Mail Contract 170 (MC2016–47 and CP2016–62) (Order No. 2978).

12. Priority Mail Express Contract 31 (MC2016–61 and CP2016–76) (Order No. 2982).

13. Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 11 (MC2016–62 and CP2016–77) (Order No. 2985).

14. Priority Mail Contract 179 (MC2016–63 and CP2016–78) (Order No. 2986).

15. Priority Mail Contract 180 (MC2016–64 and CP2016–79) (Order No. 2987).

16. Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 10 (MC2016–58 and CP2016–73) (Order No. 2989).

17. Priority Mail Contract 178 (MC2016–60 and CP2016–75) (Order No. 2993).

18. Priority Mail Contract 172 (MC2016–49 and CP2016–64) (Order No. 3006).

19. First-Class Package Service Contract 42 (MC2016–74 and CP2016–91) (Order No. 3018).

20. Priority Mail Contract 167 (MC2016–41 and CP2016–50) (Order No. 3071).

21. Priority Mail Contract 168 (MC2016–42 and CP2016–51) (Order No. 3072).

22. Priority Mail Contract 169 (MC2016–43 and CP2016–52) (Order No. 3073).

23. Priority Mail Contract 174 (MC2016–52 and CP2016–67) (Order No. 3074).

24. Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 9 (MC2016–78 and CP2016–103) (Order No. 3102).

25. Priority Mail Contract 189 (MC2016–83 and CP2016–108) (Order No. 3135).

26. Priority Mail Contract 191 (MC2016–85 and CP2016–110) (Order No. 3141).

27. Priority Mail Contract 195 (MC2016–92 and CP2016–117) (Order No. 3152).

28. Priority Mail Contract 194 (MC2016–91 and CP2016–116) (Order No. 3154).

29. Priority Mail Express Contract 34 (MC2016–93 and CP2016–118) (Order No. 3155).

30. Priority Mail Contract 196 (MC2016–95 and CP2016–120) (Order No. 3174).

31. Priority Mail Contract 198 (MC2016–99 and CP2016–127) (Order No. 3191).

32. First-Class Package Service Contract 46 (MC2016–103 and CP2016–131) (Order No. 3192).

33. Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 28 (MC2016–106 and CP2016–134) (Order No. 3195).

34. Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 16 (MC2016–105 and CP2016–133) (Order No. 3199).

35. Parcel Select Contract 14 (MC2016–102 and CP2016–130) (Order No. 3200).

36. Priority Mail Contract 197 (MC2016–98 and CP2016–126) (Order No. 3202).

37. First-Class Package Service Contract 51 (MC2016–119 and CP2016–149) (Order No. 3251).

38. First-Class Package Service Contract 54 (MC2016–141 and CP2016–178) (Order No. 3341).

39. Priority Mail Express Contract 38 (MC2016–161 and CP2016–232) (Order No. 3416).

40. Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 65 (MC2018–61 and CP2018–101) (Order No. 4317).

Updated product list. The referenced changes to the competitive product list

is incorporated into 39 CFR Appendix B to Subpart A of Part 3020—Competitive Product List.

List of Subjects in 39 CFR Part 3020

Administrative practice and procedure, Postal Service.

For the reasons discussed in the preamble, the Postal Regulatory Commission amends chapter III of title 39 of the Code of Federal Regulations as follows:

PART 3020—PRODUCT LISTS

■ 1. The authority citation for part 3020 continues to read as follows:

Authority: 39 U.S.C. 503; 3622; 3631; 3642; 3682.

■ 2. Revise appendix B to subpart A of part 3020 to read as follows:

Appendix B to Subpart A of Part 3020—Competitive Product List

(An asterisk (*) indicates an organizational class or group, not a Postal Service product.)

Domestic Products *

Priority Mail Express
Priority Mail
Parcel Select
Parcel Return Service
First-Class Package Service
USPS Retail Ground

International Products *

Outbound International Expedited Services
Inbound Parcel Post (at UPU rates)
Outbound Priority Mail International
International Priority Airmail (IPA)
International Surface Air List (ISAL)
International Direct Sacks—M-Bags
Outbound Single-Piece First-Class Package
International Service

Negotiated Service Agreements *

Domestic *

Priority Mail Express Contract 28
Priority Mail Express Contract 32
Priority Mail Express Contract 35
Priority Mail Express Contract 36
Priority Mail Express Contract 37
Priority Mail Express Contract 39
Priority Mail Express Contract 40
Priority Mail Express Contract 41
Priority Mail Express Contract 42
Priority Mail Express Contract 43
Priority Mail Express Contract 44
Priority Mail Express Contract 45
Priority Mail Express Contract 46
Priority Mail Express Contract 47
Priority Mail Express Contract 48
Priority Mail Express Contract 49
Priority Mail Express Contract 50
Priority Mail Express Contract 51
Priority Mail Express Contract 52
Priority Mail Express Contract 53
Priority Mail Express Contract 54
Priority Mail Express Contract 55
Priority Mail Express Contract 56
Priority Mail Express Contract 57
Priority Mail Express Contract 58
Priority Mail Express Contract 59
Priority Mail Express Contract 60

Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 78
 Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 79
 Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 80
 Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 81
 Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 82
 Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 83
 Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 84
 Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 85
 Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 86
 Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 87
 Priority Mail Express & Priority Mail Contract 88
 Parcel Select & Parcel Return Service Contract 3
 Parcel Select & Parcel Return Service Contract 6
 Parcel Select & Parcel Return Service Contract 7
 Parcel Select & Parcel Return Service Contract 8
 Parcel Select Contract 2
 Parcel Select Contract 8
 Parcel Select Contract 9
 Parcel Select Contract 11
 Parcel Select Contract 13
 Parcel Select Contract 15
 Parcel Select Contract 16
 Parcel Select Contract 17
 Parcel Select Contract 19
 Parcel Select Contract 20
 Parcel Select Contract 21
 Parcel Select Contract 22
 Parcel Select Contract 23
 Parcel Select Contract 25
 Parcel Select Contract 26
 Parcel Select Contract 27
 Parcel Select Contract 28
 Parcel Select Contract 29
 Parcel Select Contract 30
 Parcel Select Contract 31
 Parcel Select Contract 32
 Parcel Select Contract 33
 Priority Mail—Non-Published Rates
 Priority Mail—Non-Published Rates 1
 First-Class Package Service Contract 38
 First-Class Package Service Contract 39
 First-Class Package Service Contract 40
 First-Class Package Service Contract 41
 First-Class Package Service Contract 43
 First-Class Package Service Contract 44
 First-Class Package Service Contract 45
 First-Class Package Service Contract 47
 First-Class Package Service Contract 48
 First-Class Package Service Contract 49
 First-Class Package Service Contract 50
 First-Class Package Service Contract 52
 First-Class Package Service Contract 53
 First-Class Package Service Contract 55
 First-Class Package Service Contract 57
 First-Class Package Service Contract 59
 First-Class Package Service Contract 60
 First-Class Package Service Contract 61
 First-Class Package Service Contract 62
 First-Class Package Service Contract 63
 First-Class Package Service Contract 64
 First-Class Package Service Contract 66

[illegible][illegible]

Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 27	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 67	GEPS 8
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 28	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 68	GEPS 9
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 29	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 69	GEPS 10
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 30	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 70	Global Bulk Economy (GBE) Contracts
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 31	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 71	Global Plus Contracts
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 32	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 72	Global Plus 1C
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 33	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 73	Global Plus 1D
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 34	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 74	Global Plus 1E
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 35	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 75	Global Plus 2C
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 36	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 76	Global Plus 3
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 37	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 77	Global Plus 4
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 38	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 78	Global Plus 5
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 39	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 79	Global Plus 6
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 40	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 80	Global Reseller Expedited Package Contracts
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 42	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 81	Global Reseller Expedited Package Services
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 43	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 82	1
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 44	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 83	Global Reseller Expedited Package Services
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 45	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 84	2
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 46	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 85	Global Reseller Expedited Package Services
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 47	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 86	3
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 48	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 87	Global Reseller Expedited Package Services
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 49	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 88	4
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 50	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 89	Global Expedited Package Services (GEPS)—
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 51	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 90	Non-Published Rates
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 52	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 91	Global Expedited Package Services (GEPS)—Non-Published Rates 2
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 53	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 92	Global Expedited Package Services (GEPS)—Non-Published Rates 3
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 54	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 93	Global Expedited Package Services (GEPS)—Non-Published Rates 4
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 55	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 94	Global Expedited Package Services (GEPS)—Non-Published Rates 5
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 56	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 95	Global Expedited Package Services (GEPS)—Non-Published Rates 6
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 57	Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 96	Global Expedited Package Services (GEPS)—Non-Published Rates 7
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 58	Priority Mail & Parcel Select Contract 1	Global Expedited Package Services (GEPS)—Non-Published Rates 8
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 59	Priority Mail & Parcel Select Contract 2	Global Expedited Package Services (GEPS)—Non-Published Rates 9
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 60	Priority Mail Express & First-Class Package Service Contract 1	Global Expedited Package Services (GEPS)—Non-Published Rates 10
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 61	Priority Mail Express & First-Class Package Service Contract 2	Global Expedited Package Services (GEPS)—Non-Published Rates 11
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 62	Priority Mail Express & First-Class Package Service Contract 3	Global Expedited Package Services (GEPS)—Non-Published Rates 12
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 63		Global Expedited Package Services (GEPS)—Non-Published Rates 13
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 64		Global Expedited Package Services (GEPS)—Non-Published Rates 14
Priority Mail & First-Class Package Service Contract 66		Priority Mail International Regional Rate Boxes—Non-Published Rates
	Outbound International *	Outbound Competitive International Merchandise Return Service
	Global Expedited Package Services (GEPS) Contracts	Agreement with Royal Mail Group, Ltd.
	GEPS 3	Priority Mail International Regional Rate Boxes Contracts
	GEPS 5	Priority Mail International Regional Rate Boxes Contracts 1
	GEPS 6	Competitive International Merchandise Return Service Agreements with Foreign Postal Operators
	GEPS 7	Competitive International Merchandise Return Service Agreements with Foreign Postal Operators 1
		Competitive International Merchandise Return Service Agreements with Foreign Postal Operators 2
		Alternative Delivery Provider (ADP) Contracts ADP 1
		Alternative Delivery Provider Reseller (ADPR) Contracts ADPR 1
		Inbound International *
		International Business Reply Service (IBRS) Competitive Contracts

International Business Reply Service
Competitive Contract 1
International Business Reply Service
Competitive Contract 3
Inbound Direct Entry Contracts with
Customers
Inbound Direct Entry Contracts with Foreign
Postal Administrations
Inbound Direct Entry Contracts with
Foreign Postal Administrations
Inbound Direct Entry Contracts with
Foreign Postal Administrations 1
Inbound EMS
Inbound EMS 2
Inbound Air Parcel Post (at non-UPU rates)
Royal Mail Group Inbound Air Parcel Post
Agreement
Inbound Competitive Multi-Service
Agreements with Foreign Postal
Operators
Inbound Competitive Multi-Service
Agreements with Foreign Postal
Operators 1

Special Services *

Address Enhancement Services
Greeting Cards, Gift Cards, and Stationery
International Ancillary Services
International Money Transfer Service—
Outbound
International Money Transfer Service—
Inbound
Premium Forwarding Service
Shipping and Mailing Supplies
Post Office Box Service
Competitive Ancillary Services

Nonpostal Services *

Advertising
Licensing of Intellectual Property other than
Officially Licensed Retail Products
(OLRP)
Mail Service Promotion
Officially Licensed Retail Products (OLRP)
Passport Photo Service
Photocopying Service
Rental, Leasing, Licensing or other Non-Sale
Disposition of Tangible Property
Training Facilities and Related Services
USPS Electronic Postmark (EPM) Program

Market Tests *

Customized Delivery
Global eCommerce Marketplace (GeM)

Stacy L. Ruble,

Secretary.

[FR Doc. 2019-09096 Filed 5-2-19; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 7710-FW-P

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

40 CFR Part 52

[EPA-R05-OAR-2018-0569; FRL-9993-25-
Region 5]

Air Plan Approval; Wisconsin; Nonattainment New Source Review Requirements for the 2008 8-Hour Ozone Standard

AGENCY: Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA).

ACTION: Final rule.

SUMMARY: The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) is approving, as a State Implementation Plan (SIP) revision, Wisconsin's certification that its SIP satisfies the nonattainment new source review (NNSR) requirements of the Clean Air Act (CAA) for the 2008 ozone National Ambient Air Quality Standard (NAAQS). The State's submittal is in response to EPA's February 3 and December 11, 2017, Findings of Failure to Submit (FFS) final rule, which found that Wisconsin failed to satisfy CAA requirements for implementation of the 2008 ozone NAAQS in nonattainment areas.

DATES: This final rule is effective on June 3, 2019.

ADDRESSES: EPA has established a docket for this action under Docket ID No. EPA-R05-OAR-2018-0569. All documents in the docket are listed on the www.regulations.gov website. Although listed in the index, some information is not publicly available, *i.e.*, Confidential Business Information (CBI) or other information whose disclosure is restricted by statute. Certain other material, such as copyrighted material, is not placed on the internet and will be publicly available only in hard copy form. Publicly available docket materials are available either through www.regulations.gov or at the Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5, Air and Radiation Division, 77 West Jackson Boulevard, Chicago, Illinois 60604. This facility is open from 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding Federal holidays. We recommend that you telephone Rachel Rineheart, Environmental Engineer, at (312) 886-7017 before visiting the Region 5 office.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:

Rachel Rineheart, Environmental Engineer, Air Permits Section, Air Programs Branch (AR-18J), Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5, 77 West Jackson Boulevard, Chicago, Illinois 60604, (312) 886-7017, Rineheart.rachel@epa.gov.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Throughout this document whenever "we," "us," or "our" is used, we mean EPA. This supplementary information section is arranged as follows:

- I. Background
- II. What action is EPA taking?
- III. Statutory and Executive Order Reviews

I. Background

A. Background on the 2008 Ozone Standard

On March 27, 2008, EPA promulgated a revised 8-hour ozone NAAQS of 0.075 parts per million (ppm).¹ Promulgation of a revised NAAQS triggers a requirement for EPA to designate areas of the country as nonattainment, attainment, or unclassifiable for the standard. For the ozone NAAQS, this also involves classifying any nonattainment areas at the time of designation.² Ozone nonattainment areas are classified based on the severity of their ozone levels (as determined based on the area's "design value," which represents air quality in the area for the most recent 3 years). The classifications for ozone nonattainment areas are marginal, moderate, serious, severe, and extreme.³

Areas that EPA designates nonattainment for the ozone NAAQS are subject to the general nonattainment area planning requirements of CAA section 172 and also to the ozone-specific planning requirements of CAA section 182. Ozone nonattainment areas in the lower classification levels have fewer and/or less stringent mandatory air quality planning and control requirements than those in higher classifications. For marginal areas, a state is required to submit a baseline emissions inventory, adopt provisions into the SIP requiring emissions statements from stationary sources, and implement a NNSR program for the relevant ozone NAAQS.⁴ For moderate areas, a state needs to comply with the marginal area requirements, plus additional moderate area requirements, including the requirement to submit a modeled demonstration that the area will attain the NAAQS as expeditiously as practicable but no later than 6 years after designation, the requirement to submit a reasonable further progress (RFP) plan, the requirement to adopt and implement certain emissions controls, such as Reasonably Available Control Technology and Vehicle Emissions Inspection and Maintenance, and the requirement for greater emissions offsets for new or modified major stationary sources under the state's NNSR program.⁵

¹ 73 FR 16436.

² CAA sections 107(d)(1) and 181(a)(1).

³ CAA section 181(a)(1).

⁴ CAA section 182(a).

⁵ CAA section 182(b).